
  
 
 

PROPOSITION AA 
INDEPENDENT CITIZENS OVERSIGHT 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

 
Board of Trustees 
Joyce Dalessandro 

Kristin Gibson 
Beth Hergesheimer 

Melisse Mossy  
Maureen “Mo” Muir 

 
Superintendent 

Robert A. Haley, Ed.D. 

   

Independent Citizens Oversight Committee Members: 
Robin Duveen/President, Jerilyn Larson/Representative, 
Kristina Leyva/Secretary, Kim Bybee, Clarke Caines, Mary Farrell, 
Amy Flicker, Robert Nascenzi, Rhea Stewart, Jeffery Thomas 
 

Supported by the Business Services Division 
(760) 753-6491 

  

 

 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance, disability-related modifications, or accommodations, 

including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the public meetings of the District’s Independent Citizens Oversight Committee, 

please contact the Business Services Office. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the staf to make reasonable arrangements to 

ensure accommodation and accessibility to this meeting. Upon request, the staff shall also make available this agenda and all other public 

records associated with the meeting in appropriate alternative formats for persons with a disability. 

Canyon Crest Academy • Carmel Valley MS • Diegueño MS • Earl Warren MS • La Costa Canyon HS  
Oak Crest MS • Pacific Trails MS • San Dieguito HS Academy • Sunset HS • Torrey Pines HS 

 ICOC Agenda, 03/19/19 
Page 1 of 2 

 

TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2019  District Office / Board Room 
6:00 PM   710 ENCINITAS BLVD., ENCINITAS, CA  92024 
 

Welcome to the meeting of the Independent Citizens Oversight Committee of the San Dieguito Union 
High School District.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, please complete a speaker slip located at the sign-in desk 
and present it to the Secretary to the Committee prior to the start of the meeting.  At the discretion of the 
Committee President, members of the public are entitled to speak on agenda items either immediately after the 
item is called or following background information provided related to the item.  Members of the public are entitled 
to comment on an agenda item only once at any meeting.  Although the Committee President may seek additional 
information, participation in debate on any item before the Committee shall be limited to the Committee and staff.  
The Committee President shall determine the order of speakers, when the Committee President calls on a member 
of the public they are asked to provide their name prior to making comments. 

Members wishing to address the Committee on any bond program-related issue not elsewhere on the agenda are 
invited to do so under the "Public Comments" item. If you wish to speak under Public Comments, please follow the 
same directions (above) for speaking to agenda items.   

In the interest of time and order, presentations from the public are limited to three (3) minutes per person, per topic.  
The total time for agenda and non-agenda items shall not exceed twenty (20) minutes. An individual speaker's 
allotted time may not be increased by a donation of time from others in attendance.  

In accordance with the Brown Act, unless an item has been placed on the published agenda, there shall be no 
action taken.  They may 1) acknowledge receipt of the information, 2) refer to staff for further study, or 3) refer the 
matter to the next agenda. 
 
 

PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS 

In compliance with Government Code 54957.5, agenda-related documents that have been distributed to the 
Committee less than 72 hours prior to the Meeting will be available for review on the Committee website,         
www.sduhsd.net/ICOC and/or at the district office.  Please contact the Business Services Office for more 
information. 

 

 

CELL PHONES / ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set cellular phones and/or electronic devices to silent mode and 
engage in conversations outside the meeting room. 

  

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
1 of 60

http://sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing-/Business-Services/index.html
file://///do-fs/department%20shares/Business%20Services/ICOC/Agendas%20-%20Minutes/www.sduhsd.net/ICOC
http://sduhsd.net/About-SDUHSD/Department-Listing-/Business-Services/index.html


    

 ICOC Agenda, 03/19/19 
Page 2 of 2 

 
MEETING OF THE INDEPENDENT CITIZENS OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE  

OF THE SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 

AGENDA 

TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2019 District Office / Technology Lab - Suite 206 
6:00 PM 710 Encinitas Blvd., ENCINITAS, CA  92024 

 

 

PRELIMINARY FUNCTIONS ................................................................................................ (ITEMS 1 - 3) 

 1. CALL TO ORDER ...................................................................................................................... 6:00 PM 

  * WELCOME / MEETING PROTOCOL REMARKS ..................................................... COMMITTEE PRESIDENT 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 In accordance with the Brown Act, unless an item has been placed on the published agenda, there 
shall be no action taken. The Committee may 1) acknowledge receipt of the information, 2) refer to 
staff for further study, or 3) refer the matter to the next agenda. (See Agenda Cover Sheet)  

INFORMATION ITEMS  ......................................................................................................... (ITEMS 4 - 5)        

    4. STAFF REPORT .............................................................................................................. TINA DOUGLAS 

 5.  REVIEW OF THE PROP AA 2018 ANNUAL AUDIT ............................... WILKINSON HADLEY KING & CO. LLP 

          

DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS  ............................................................................................. (ITEMS 6 - 7) 

     6. SPECIAL MEETING / APRIL 2, 2019 

  -  Review & Finalize Draft of 2018 ICOC Annual Report 

     7. MEETING ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

The next regularly scheduled Independent Citizens Oversight Committee meeting will be held on April 
23, 2019, at 6:00 PM in the San Dieguito Union H.S. District Office Board Room 101. The District Office 
is located at 710 Encinitas Blvd., Encinitas, CA, 92024. 

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
2 of 60



 

San Dieguito Union High School District 
 

INFORMATION REGARDING ICOC AGENDA ITEM 
 

TO: INDEPENDENT CITIZENS OVERSIGHT 
COMMITTEE 

    
DATE OF REPORT:  March 14, 2019  

 
ICOC MEETING DATE: March 19, 2019 

 
PREPARED BY: Dawn Campbell, Director of Fiscal Services 

 John Addleman, Exec. Director of Planning Svcs.  
 Tina Douglas, Assoc. Supt. of Business Services

       

SUBMITTED BY:  Robert A. Haley, Ed.D., Superintendent 
 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF THE 2018 ANNUAL PROPOSITION AA 
BUILDING FUND AUDIT REPORT   

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

In November 2012, the San Dieguito community approved the passage of Proposition 
AA, a General Obligation Bond initiative.  Proposition 39 General Obligation bonds 
require an independent performance audit to ensure that funds have been expended 
only on the specific purposes listed in the ballot measure and a financial audit of the 
bond proceeds.  The audit also includes an evaluation of procedures including internal 
controls and the formation, composition and purpose of the Independent Citizens 
Oversight Committee.  
 

The District entered into an agreement for the annual Proposition AA audit with 
Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP – Certified Public Accountants.  The audit has been 
completed in accordance with state law.  Wilkinson Hadley King & Co. LLP, now 
presents the audit report for your review and acceptance.   
 

Findings and recommendations are noted on page 48 of the audit report.  The report 
does not contain any negative findings or identify any material weaknesses in the 
District’s internal controls.  In addition, review of the Proposition AA procedures and 
Independent Citizens Oversight Committee compliance requirements revealed no areas 
of noncompliance.   
 

The District is required to present the Prop 39 Independent Audit Report to the 
Independent Citizens Oversight Committee before March 31st of each year.  The 
Proposition AA audit report will be presented to the Board of Trustees for their review 
and acceptance at its regularly scheduled meeting on April 4, 2019.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

It is recommended that the Committee review the 2018 annual Proposition AA Building 
Fund audit of the San Dieguito Union High School District, as prepared by Wilkinson 
Hadley King & Co. LLP, as shown in the attached supplement. 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
3 of 60



SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROPOSITION AA 

BUILDING FUND (21-39) 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
4 of 60



SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA 

BUILDING FUND (21-39) 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

Financial Statements and Supplemental Information 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

    
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION 1 

Introduction And Citizens’ Oversight Committee Member Listing .................................................................. 1 
Independent Auditor’s Report ............................................................................................................................ 2 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ............................................................................................................ 5 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 11 

Balance Sheet ................................................................................................................................................... 11 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance ............................................................ 12 
Notes to the Financial Statements .................................................................................................................... 13 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 36 

Schedule of the Bond’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability California State Teachers’ 
Retirement System (CalSTRS) ...................................................................................................................... 36 

Schedule of Bond’s Contributions California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) ...................... 37 
Schedule of the Bond’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability California Public 

Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) .................................................................................................... 38 
Schedule of the Bond’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability California Public 

Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) .................................................................................................... 39 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information ............................................................................................... 40 

SUPPLEMENTARY   INFORMATION 41 

General Obligation Bonds Project List ............................................................................................................ 41 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS 42 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards ................................................................................................................... 42 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Performance ............................................................................................... 44 

AUDITOR’S RESULTS, FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 48 

Schedule of Findings and Responses ............................................................................................................... 48 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings .................................................................................................... 49 

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
5 of 60



 

1 
 

INTRODUCTION

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
6 of 60



 

1 
 

 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Introduction And Citizens’ Oversight Committee Member Listing  

               

 
On November 6, 2012 the San Dieguito Union High School District was successful under Proposition AA in obtaining 
District voters to issue up to $449,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds pursuant to a 55% vote in a bond election. 
The General Obligation Bonds are considered Proposition 39 bonds. The passage of Proposition 39 in November 
2000 amended the California Constitution to include accountability measures. Specifically, the District must conduct 
an annual, independent performance audit to ensure that funds have been expended only on the specific projects listed 
as well as an annual, independent audit of the proceeds from the sale of the bonds until all of the proceeds have been 
expended.  
 
Upon passage of Proposition 39, an accompanying piece of legislation, AB 1908 was also enacted, which amended 
the Education Code to establish additional procedures which must be followed if a District seeks approval of a bond 
measure pursuant to the 55% majority authorized in Proposition 39 including formation, composition and purpose of 
the Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee, and authorization for injunctive relief against improper expenditure 
of bond revenues. 
 
The San Dieguito Union High School District Proposition AA Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee as of June 
30, 2018 was comprised of the following members:  
 

Name Position Term Expiration
Robin Duveen President-Taxpayer Association Member April 2019
Jerilyn Larson Representative-Member-At-Large April 2019
Kristina Leyva Secretary-Parent of SDUHSD Student April 2019
Robert Nascenzi Member-Business Organization April 2019
Mary Farrell Member-Senior Citizen Organization April 2019
Amy Flicker Teacher-Parent Organization April 2019
Jeffery Thomas Member-At-Large April 2019
Rhea Stewart Member-At-Large April 2019
Kim Bybee Member-At-Large April 2019
Clarke Caines Member-At-Large April 2019

 
 
  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
7 of 60



 

2 
 

 

 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

Governing Board Members and 
Citizens’ Oversight Committee 
San Dieguito Union High School District 
Encinitas, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) of San Dieguito 
Union High School District, which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2018, and the related statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

As discussed in Note B, the financial statements present only the Building Fund (21-39) which is specific to 
Proposition AA and is not intended to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of San Dieguito 
Union High School District in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
8 of 60



 

3 
 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) of San Dieguito Union High School District as of June 30, 2018, and the 
results of its operations for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion 
and Analysis, schedule of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability and schedule of District pension 
contributions identified as Required Supplementary Information in the table of contents be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the Required Supplementary Information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying supplementary information, as required by the 2017-18 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local 
Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 
19810 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, 
in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 15, 2019, on our 
consideration of San Dieguito Union High School District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering San Dieguito Union High School District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
9 of 60



 

4 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

In accordance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as incorporated in California Constitution Article 13A, we 
have also issued our performance audit report dated March 15, 2019 on our consideration of the District’s compliance 
with the requirements of Proposition 39 with regards to the Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39). That report is an 
integral part of our audit of the District’s Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2018 and should be considered in assessing the results of our financial audit.  

 

El Cajon, California 
March 15, 2019 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
10 of 60



 

5 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018 

(Unaudited) 
               

 

This section of San Dieguito Union High School District’s (District) Proposition AA Building Fund annual 
financial and performance audit report presents management’s discussion and analysis of the Proposition 
AA Bond Program during the year ending June 30, 2018.  Readers should also review the financial 
statements and notes to the basic financial statements included in the audit report to enhance their 
understanding of the Proposition AA Bond Program’s financial and program performance. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s Proposition AA Building 
Fund basic financial statements.  The Fund’s financial statements comprise three components: 1) 
management’s discussion and analysis; 2) the Proposition AA Building Fund’s financial statements; and 3) 
the performance audit required by law.   
 
The District accounts for Proposition AA General Obligation Bond activity in the District’s Building Fund.  
The Building Fund is a governmental fund type accounted for on a modified accrual basis of accounting 
that does not include fixed assets or long-term liabilities.  
 
On November 6, 2012, the voters of the San Dieguito Union High School District community voted to 
approve Proposition AA to authorize the District to issue up to $449 million of general obligation bonds to 
finance certain specified capital projects and facilities.  In April 2013, the district issued the first series of 
those bonds in the amount of $160 million to fund projects.  The second series of those bonds were issued 
in April 2015, in the amount of $117 million.  The third series of those bonds were issued in July 2016, in 
the amount of $62 million. The latest series of bonds, in the amount of $25 million, were issued in May 
2018.  The District currently has $352.9 million outstanding in general obligation bonds, as of June 30, 
2018.   
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Key financial highlights for 2018 are as follows: 
 

• The fund balance for Proposition AA Building Fund is $81.2 million, as of June 30, 2018, which is 
$19.4 million lower than June 2017 as projects continue. 

• Revenues consisted of other state income, interest earned, and other local income.  Revenue totaled 
$5.4 million as of June 30, 2018, as compared to $63.8 million as of June 30, 2017. 

• Expenditures and other outgo as of June 30, 2018, totaled $49.2 million, as compared to $57.6 
million in June 2017. 

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
11 of 60



 

6 
 

 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND 
 
Balance Sheet 
 
The District’s Proposition AA Building Fund balance as of June 30, 2018 was $81.2 million (see Table A-
1 below).   
 
 

Table A-1 
 

 

 

 

 
Fund Balance 
 
The interest income reported represents funds earned on the cash held by the San Diego County Treasurer.  
The total expenditures of $49.2 million are only for Proposition AA voter authorized expenses (see Table 
A-2 below). 

 
  

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
June 30, 2018

Total %
Change

Building Fund over 16-17

2016-17 2017-18
Cash 102,662,062        87,238,548       -15.0%
Accounts Recievable 866,669              365,549            -57.8%
Total Assets 103,528,731$      87,604,097$     -15.4%

Accounts Payable 2,818,289           6,372,837         126.1%
Due to Other Funds -                         -                      
Total Liabilities 2,818,289$          6,372,837$       126.1%

Fund Balance 100,710,442        81,231,260       -19.3%

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 103,528,731$      87,604,097$     -15.4%

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
12 of 60



 

7 
 

 

Table A-2 
SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

June 30, 2018

Building Fund % change 
Revenues 2016-17 2017-18 over 16-17

Other State Income 11,844                    12,990                    9.7%
Interest Income 1,300,563               1,309,003               0.6%
Other Local Income 301,803                  4,097,084               1257.5%

Total revenues 1,614,210$             5,419,077$             235.7%

Expenditures 
Classified Salaries 815,973                  723,649                  -11.3%
Employee Benefits 247,284                  243,993                  -1.3%
Operating Expenses 485,799                  195,524                  -59.8%
Capital Outlay:
  Architect Fees
  Land Improvements (37,036)                  83,339                    -325.0%
  New Construction 46,672,316             46,897,648             0.5%
  Construction Improvement 6,505,595               103,571                  -98.4%
  Equipment 804,174                  1,003,845               24.8%
  Equipment Replacement 1,384,691               32,630                    -                   

56,878,796$           49,284,199$           -13.4%

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Sales of Bonds 62,000,000             25,000,000             
Bond Premium 229,274                  939,590                  
Cost of Issuance -                             (788,062)                 
Interfund Transfer to General Fund (765,589)                 (765,589)                 

61,463,685$           24,385,939$           

Net Change in Fund Balance 6,199,099$             (19,479,183)$          -414.2%

94,511,344$           100,710,443$         
Fund Balance, Ending 100,710,443$         81,231,260$           -19.3%
Fund Balance, Beginning

 
 
 
 

Long-Term Debt: At the end of the year, San Dieguito Union High School District had $336,955,000 in 
long-term debt outstanding. This is an increase of $20,705,000 from the prior year. 

 
% change 

2016-17 2017-18 over 16-17

General Obligation Bonds Payable
Due within one year 4,295,000$            3,035,000$            -29.3%
Due in more than one year 311,955,000          333,920,000          7.0%

Total General Obligation Bonds Payable 316,250,000$        336,955,000$        6.5%

Building Fund

 
  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
13 of 60



 

8 
 

 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION YEAR IN REVIEW 
 
The 2017-2018 fiscal year began with the following nine school construction projects underway throughout 
the San Dieguito Union High School District: 
 

• Canyon Crest Academy – Building B  
• Earl Warren Middle School – Campus Re-Construction, Phase I 
• San Dieguito High School Academy – Math & Science Building 
• Oak Crest Middle School – Interim Housing  
• Oak Crest Middle School – New Science Classrooms/Quad 
• Torrey Pines High School – Culinary Arts Classroom and Interim Housing (Arts) 
• Carmel Valley Middle School – Performing Arts Center and Drama Classroom Modernization 

and New Music Classroom Building 
• San Dieguito High School Academy – Culinary Arts Classroom 
• La Costa Canyon – Media Center Landscaping 

 
In addition, planning was in progress at the start of 2017-2018 for construction of the upcoming school 
projects: 

• La Costa Canyon High School – 200s Building and Courtyard Renovation 
• Pacific Trails Middle School – Second Classroom Building  
• San Dieguito High School Academy – Arts and Humanities Building  
• Torrey Pines High School – Performing Arts Center Complex  
 

By the end of fall of 2017-2018, six of the nine construction projects were complete or nearly complete: 

• Canyon Crest Academy – Building B  
• Oak Crest Middle School – Interim Housing  
• Earl Warren Middle School – Campus Reconstruction, Phase I 
• La Costa Canyon High School – Media Center Landscaping 
• San Dieguito High School Academy – Math & Science Building 
• Torrey Pines High School – Culinary Arts Classroom and Interim Housing (Arts) 

Also in the fall, construction had begun on Torrey Pines High School – Performing Arts Center Complex, 
and Pacific Trails Middle School – Second Classroom Building. 
 
Planning also began in the fall of 2017-18 on: 

• Diegueno Middle School – Buildings B & G Renovation, New Building P Construction 
• Earl Warren Middle School –Campus Reconstruction Phase 2 
• Oak Crest Middle School – Administration Building Reconstruction 
• Canyon Crest Academy – Building B Landscape & Pathway Enhancements 

 
Over the winter of 2017-2018, the San Dieguito High School Academy – Culinary Arts Classroom project 
was completed, and construction on the San Dieguito High School Academy – Arts and Humanities 
Building had begun. 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
14 of 60



 

9 
 

 
 
In the spring of 2017-2018, construction had started on Earl Warren Middle School – Campus 
Reconstruction Phase 2, joining the remaining five construction projects still underway: 
 

• Oak Crest Middle School – New Science Classrooms/Quad  
• Carmel Valley Middle School – Performing Arts Center and Drama Classroom Modernization and 

New Music Classroom Building 
• Torrey Pines High School – Performing Arts Center Complex 
• Pacific Trails Middle School – Second Classroom Building  
• San Dieguito High School Academy – Arts and Humanities Building  

 
At the close of 2017-2018, three school projects originally under planning earlier in the year started 
construction:  
 

• Diegueno Middle School – Buildings B & G Renovation 
• Canyon Crest Academy – Building B Landscape & Pathway Enhancements 
• La Costa Canyon High School – 200s Building and Courtyard Renovation  

 
Joining the remaining six construction projects still underway: 
 

• Earl Warren Middle School – Campus Reconstruction Phase 2 
• Oak Crest Middle School – New Science Classrooms/Quad  
• Carmel Valley Middle School – Performing Arts Center and Drama Classroom Modernization 

and New Music Classroom Building  
• Torrey Pines High School – Performing Arts Center Complex 
• Pacific Trails Middle School – Second Classroom Building  
• San Dieguito High School Academy – Arts and Humanities Building  

 
In looking forward to the 2018-2019 year, planning was nearing completion on two school projects for 
construction start dates in 2018-2019: 
 

• Oak Crest Middle School – Administration Building Reconstruction  
• Diegueno Middle School – New Building P  

 
Planning for construction starts in the 2019-2020 year was also underway for the Sunset High School – 
Campus Reconstruction, and Torrey Pines High School – I Building and Custodial Warehouse Renovation 
projects. 
 
Overall, the seven school construction projects completed in 2017-2018 were delivered on time and under 
budget, with a projected savings of $1.517 million to be used towards other voter-approved Prop AA 
projects. 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
15 of 60



 

10 
 

 
FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE 
 
At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of the existing 
circumstances that could affect its financial health in the future: 
 

• Possible increases in building costs during construction 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the San Dieguito Union High School District’s Proposition AA Building Fund finances and to 
demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it receives.  Questions concerning any of the 
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to 
the Office of the Associate Superintendent of Business Services, San Dieguito Union High School District, 
710 Encinitas Blvd., Encinitas, CA 92024. 
 
  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
16 of 60



 

 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
17 of 60



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
11 

 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2018 

               

 

 

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 87,238,548$      
Accounts receivable 365,549            

Total Current Assets 87,604,097       

TOTAL ASSETS 87,604,097$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 6,372,837$       

Total Current Liabilities 6,372,837         

Fund Balance
Restricted for capital projects 81,231,260       

Total Fund Balance 81,231,260       

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 87,604,097$      

 

 

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
18 of 60



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
12 

 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 

REVENUES
Other state income 12,990$         
Interest income 1,309,003       
Other local income 4,097,084       

TOTAL REVENUES 5,419,077       

EXPENDITURES
Classified salaries 723,649         
Employee benefits and taxes 243,993         
Professional and consulting services 195,524         
Capital Outlay:

Land improvements 83,339           
New construction 46,897,648     
Construction improvement 103,571         
Equipment 1,003,845       
Equipment replacement 32,630           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 49,284,199     

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (43,865,122)    

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Interfund transfer to General Fund (765,589)        
Proceeds from sale of bonds 25,000,000     
Bond premium 939,590         
Cost of issuance (788,062)        

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 24,385,939     

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (19,479,183)    

FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 100,710,443   

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 81,231,260$   

 

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
19 of 60



 

13 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

A. Definition of the Fund 
 
The Building Fund (21-39) was formed to account for property acquisition and construction of new schools as 
well as renovation of current schools for San Dieguito Union High School District (District), through 
expenditures of general obligation bonds issued under the General Obligation Bonds Election of 2012. Fund (21-
39) is one of the Building Funds of the District.  

 
B. Summary of Significant Policies 

 
Basis of Presentation  
 
The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the policies and procedures of the 
Department of Education’s School Accounting Manual. The accompanying financial statements have been 
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and Audits of State and Local 
Governmental Units issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  
 
Fund Structure  
 
The accompanying financial statements are used to account for the transactions of the Building Fund specific to 
Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) as defined in Note A and are not intended to present fairly the financial 
position and results of operations of San Dieguito Union High School District in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis of Accounting  
 
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and 
reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of measurement made, regardless 
of the measurement focus applied.  
 
The Building Fund (21-39) is maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the 
current fiscal period. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred (when 
goods are received or services rendered). With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities 
generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance 
reports on the sources (revenues and other financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other financing uses) 
of current financial resources.  
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting  
 
The Board of Trustees adopts an operating budget no later than July 1 in accordance with state law. This budget 
is revised by the Board of Trustees during the year to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and 
expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the time of budget adoption. The District employs 
budget control by minor object and by individual appropriation accounts. Expenditures cannot legally exceed 
appropriations by major object account.  
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
20 of 60



 

14 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

Encumbrances  
 
The District utilizes an encumbrance accounting system under which purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable 
appropriation. Encumbrances are liquidated at June 30 since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.  
 
Use of Estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash in County Treasury  
 
In accordance with Education Code §41001, the District maintains a substantial amount of its cash in the San 
Diego County Treasury. The County pools these funds with those of other districts in the County and invests the 
cash. These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates fair value, in accordance with the requirements 
of GASB Statement No. 31.  
 
Interest earned is deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared 
by all funds in the pool.  
 
The county is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code §53648 et.seq. 
The funds maintained by the county are either secured by federal depository insurance or are collateralized.  
 
Information regarding the amount of dollars invested in derivatives with San Diego County Treasury was not 
available. 
 
Receivables and Payables  
 
Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of 
the fiscal year are referred to as interfund receivables/payables. Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated 
uncollectible amounts. There were no significant receivables that are not scheduled for collection within one year 
of year end.  
 
Fund Balances – Governmental Funds  
 
Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:  
 
Nonspendable Fund Balance – represents amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable 
form (such as inventory or prepaid insurance) or legally required to remain intact (such as notes receivable or 
principal of a permanent fund).  
 
Restricted Fund Balance – represents amounts that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions 
or enabling legislation.  
 

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
21 of 60



 

15 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 
Committed Fund Balance – represents amounts that can only be used for a specific purpose because of a formal 
action by the District’s governing board. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the 
governing board removes those constraints by taking the same type of formal action. Committed fund balance 
amounts may be used for other purposes with appropriate due process by the governing board. Commitments are 
typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. Committed fund balance amounts differ from 
restricted balances in that the constraints on their use do not come from outside parties, constitutional provisions, 
or enabling legislation. 
 
Assigned Fund Balance – represents amounts which the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but that do 
not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent may be stipulated by the governing board 
or by an official or body to which the governing board delegates the authority. Specific amounts that are not 
restricted or committed in a special revenue, capital projects, debt service or permanent fund are assigned for 
purposes in accordance with the nature of their fund type or the fund’s primary purpose. Assignments within the 
general fund conveys that the intended use of those amounts is for a specific purpose that is narrower than the 
general purposes of the District itself.  
 
Unassigned Fund Balance – represents amounts which are unconstrained in that they may be spent for any 
purpose. Only the general fund reports a positive unassigned fund balance. Other governmental funds might 
report a negative balance in this classification because of overspending for specific purposes for which amounts 
had been restricted, committed or assigned.  
 
When an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, 
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which 
committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the District considers amounts to have been spent 
first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds. 
 
Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources  
 
Deferred outflows of resources is a consumption of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. 
Deferred inflows of resources is an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. 
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are recorded in accordance with GASB 
Statement numbers 63 and 65. At June 30, 2018 the Districts Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) did not have 
any deferred inflows or deferred outflows of resources.   
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the CalPERS 
Schools Pool Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (CalPERS Plan) and CalSTRS Schools Pool Cost-Sharing 
Multiple Employer Plan (CalSTRS Plan) and additions to/deductions from the CalPERS Plan and CalSTRS Plan 
fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial 
Office and CalSTRS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments 
are reported at fair value.   
 
 
 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
22 of 60



 

16 
 

 
SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

               

 
GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within certain defined 
time frames. For this report, the following time frames are used: 
 
   Valuation Date (VD)   June 30, 2016 
   Measurement Date (MD)  June 30, 2017 
   Measurement Period (MP)  July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 
 
Fair Value Measurements  
 
The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
72. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. The hierarchy is 
detailed as follows:  
 

Level 1 Inputs: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that a 
government can access at the measurement date.  
 
Level 2 Inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly.  
 
Level 3 Inputs: Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.  
 

For the current fiscal year the District did not have any recurring or nonrecurring fair value measurements. 
 
Changes in Accounting Policies 
 
The District has adopted accounting policies compliant with new pronouncements issued by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) that are effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. Those newly 
implemented pronouncements are as follows: 
 

GASB Statement No. 75 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than 
Pensions 
 
The primary objective of this statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local 
governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). This statement replaces the 
requirements of GASB 45 and GASB 57. This statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring 
OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and OPEB expense. This 
statement also identifies the methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, 
discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods 
of employee service for defined benefit OPEB.  
 
The District provides a defined benefit OPEB plan that is not administered through a trust, but meets the 
criteria specified in GASB 75. As a result, the District has adjusted measurement of OPEB liability, OPEB 
expense, and related deferred outflows and inflows of resources in compliance with GASB 75. There were 
no District adjustments, OPEB transactions or expenses applicable to the Building Fund (21-39) for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2018.   

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
23 of 60



 

17 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

C. Cash and Investments 
 
Cash in County Treasury  
 
The District maintains significantly all of its cash in the San Diego County Treasury as part of the common 
investment pool. As of June 30, 2018, the portion of cash in the San Diego County Treasury attributed to Building 
Fund (21-39) was $87,228,081. The fair value of Building Fund (21-39)’s portion of this pool as of that date, as 
provided by the pool sponsor, was $87,228,081. Assumptions made in determining the fair value of the pooled 
investment portfolios are available from the County Treasurer.  
 
The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool as the District is required 
to deposit all receipts and collections of monies with their County Treasurer (Education Code Section 41001). 
The fair value of the District’s investments in the pool is reported in the accounting financial statements as 
amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire 
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of the portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the 
accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis. 
 
The San Diego County Treasury is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an 
investment company; however, the County Treasury acts in accordance with investment policies monitored by a 
Treasury Oversight Committee consisting of members appointed by participants in the investment pool and up 
to five members of the public having expertise, or an academic background in, public finance. In addition, the 
County Treasury is audited annually by an independent auditor. 
 
Cash with Fiscal Agent 
 
The District’s Building Fund (21-39) cash with fiscal agent at June 30, 2018 is shown below.  
 
       

 

Account Type Maturity Fair Value
Principal Cash - Cost of Issuance Fund < 30 Days 10,467$              

                                           
 
Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks 
 
GASB Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the District was exposed to the following specific 
investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures: 
 

a. Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
The county is restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest only in 
time deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer's 
investment pool, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and 
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements. The ratings of securities by nationally recognized rating 
agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end the District was not exposed to 
credit risk. 

 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
24 of 60



 

18 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 
b. Custodial Credit Risk 

 
Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the 
deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or 
collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not 
in the District's name. Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are 
uninsured, are not registered in the name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or 
the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the District's name. At year end, the District’s 
Building Fund (21-39) was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 

c. Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

This risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. 
At year end the District’s Building Fund (21-39) was not exposed to concentration of credit risk. 
 

d. Interest Rate Risk 
 

This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes 
in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the county 
pool. 
 

e. Foreign Currency Risk 
 

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the 
District’s Building Fund (21-39) was not exposed to foreign currency risk. 
 

D. Accounts Receivable 
 

As of June 30, 2018 accounts receivable consisted of: 
 

Accounts 
Receivable

Local Sources:
Interest 363,205$          
Other local sources 2,344               

Total Accounts Receivable 365,549$          

 
 

All receivables are expected to be collected within one year and as such, no allowance for doubtful accounts has 
been established.  

 
 
 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
25 of 60



 

19 
 

 
SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

               

 
E. Accounts Payable 

 
As of June 30, 2018 accounts payable consisted of: 

 
Accounts 
Payable

Vendors payable 6,362,951$       
Payroll and related liabilities 289                  
Pension related benefits 9,449               
Use tax payable 148                  

Total Accounts Payable 6,372,837$       

 
 

F. Interfund Balances and Activities 
 
Interfund transfers to and from other funds at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 
 

Transfer to General Fund 765,589$    

 
The amount transferred to the General Fund represents the portion of lease principal payment due on the solar 
facilities project in accordance with the authorized purpose under the facility lease agreement with the San 
Dieguito Public Facilities Financing Authority in conjunction with the Bond Project List as listed in the full text 
of the Proposition AA Ballot Measure.  

 

G. General Obligation Bonds 
 
2013 General Obligation Bonds 
 
In April 2013, the District issued $2,320,000 taxable, 2012 Election, Series A-1, General Obligation Bonds and 
$157,680,000 tax-exempt, 2012 Election, Series A-2 General Obligation Bonds. The issue consisted of 
$93,035,000 of current interest bonds with interest rates ranging from 1.00% to 5.00% with annual maturities 
from August 2014 through August 2033 and $66,965,000 in a term bond with an interest rate of 4.00% with an 
annual maturity date of August 1, 2038. Interest on the bonds accrues from the date of delivery and is payable 
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2014. The bonds were 
authorized at an election of the registered voters held on November 6, 2012 at which 55% or more of the persons 
voting on the proposition voted to authorize the issuance and sale of bonds in order to finance specific 
construction, acquisition and modernization projects approved by the voters including lease payments with 
respect to such facilities in addition to purchasing the San Dieguito Public Facilities Authority’s interest in, and 
pay and prepay lease payments due on the Torrey Pines High School Projects.  

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
26 of 60



 

20 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 

2015 General Obligation Bonds 
 
In April 2015, the District issued $7,010,000 taxable, 2012 Election, Series B-1, General Obligation Bonds and 
$110,030,000 tax-exempt, 2012 Election, Series B-2 General Obligation Bonds. The issue consisted of 
$61,050,000 of current interest bonds with interest rates ranging from 0.60% to 4.50% with annual maturities 
from August 2016 through August 2036 and $55,990,000 in a term bond with an interest rate of 4.00% with an 
annuity maturity date of February 1, 2040. Interest on the bonds accrues from the date of delivery and is payable 
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2016. The bonds were 
authorized at an election of the registered voters held on November 6, 2012 at which 55% or more of the persons 
voting on the proposition voted to authorize the issuance and sale of the bonds in order to finance specific 
construction, acquisition and modernization projects approved by the voters including lease payments with 
respect to such facilities in addition to purchasing the San Dieguito Public Facilities Authority’s interest in and 
pay and prepay lease payments due on the Torrey Pines High School Projects.  
 
2016 General Obligation Bonds 
 
In July 2016, the District issued $795,000 taxable, 2012 Election, Series C-1, General Obligation Bonds and 
$61,205,000 tax-exempt, 2012 Election, Series C-2 General Obligation Bonds. The issue consisted of 
$14,000,000 of current interest bonds with interest rates ranging from 0.80% to 4.75% with annual maturities 
from August 2017 through August 2036 and $48,000,000 in a term bond with an interest rate of 4.00% with an 
annuity maturity date of February 1, 2041. Interest on the bonds accrues from the date of delivery and is payable 
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing August 1, 2017. The bonds were authorized 
at an election of the registered voters held on November 6, 2012 at which 55% or more of the persons voting on 
the proposition voted to authorize the issuance and sale of the bonds in order to finance specific construction, 
acquisition and modernization projects approved by the voters including lease payments with respect to such 
facilities in addition to purchasing the San Dieguito Public Facilities Authority’s interest in and pay and prepay 
lease payments due on the Torrey Pines High School Projects.  

 

2018 General Obligation Bonds 
 
In May 2018, the District issued $3,100,000 taxable, 2012 Election, Series D-1, General Obligation Bonds and 
$21,900,000 tax-exempt, 2012 Election, Series D-2 General Obligation Bonds. The issue consisted of 
$25,000,000 of current interest bonds with interest rates ranging from 2.59% to 4.00% with annual maturities 
from August 2019 through August 2042. Interest on the bonds accrues from the date of delivery and is payable 
semiannually on February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2019. The bonds were 
authorized at an election of the registered voters held on November 6, 2012 at which 55% or more of the persons 
voting on the proposition voted to authorize the issuance and sale of the bonds in order to finance specific 
construction, acquisition and modernization projects approved by the voters including lease payments with 
respect to such facilities in addition to purchasing the San Dieguito Public Facilities Authority’s interest in and 
pay and prepay lease payments due on the Torrey Pines High School Projects.  

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
27 of 60



 

21 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 The outstanding bonded debt of Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) is as follows: 
 

    

   

Description
Date of 

Issuance
Interest 

Rate
Maturity 

Date
Original Issue 

Amount
Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases

Ending 
Balance

Election 2012 Series A 03/27/13 1.00-5.00% 08/01/38 160,000,000$ 144,220,000$ -$               -$              144,220,000$ 
2012 A Premium 03/27/13 08/01/38 8,336,717       7,054,145       -                 320,643     6,733,502       

Total 2012 Series A 168,336,717$ 151,274,145$ -$               320,643$    150,953,502$ 

Election 2012 Series B 04/15/15 3.00-4.50% 08/01/40 117,040,000$ 110,030,000$ -$               3,500,000$ 106,530,000$ 
2012 B Premium 04/15/15 08/01/40 6,379,386       5,805,242       -                 255,175     5,550,067       

Total 2012 Series B 123,419,386$ 115,835,242$ -$               3,755,175$ 112,080,067$ 

Election 2012 Series C 06/28/16 0.80-4.75% 08/01/41 62,000,000$   62,000,000$   -$               795,000$    61,205,000$   
2012 C Premium 06/28/16 08/01/41 2,970,848       2,852,014       -                 118,834     2,733,180       

Total 2012 Series C 64,970,848$   64,852,014$   -$               913,834$    63,938,180$   

Election 2012 Series D 05/16/18 2.59-4.00% 08/01/42 25,000,000$   -$                 25,000,000$ -$              25,000,000$   
2012 D Premium 05/16/18 08/01/42 939,590         -                   939,590       -               939,590         

Total 2012 Series D 25,939,590$   -$                 25,939,590$ -$              25,939,590$   

Total 356,726,951$ 331,961,401$ 25,939,590$ 4,989,652$ 352,911,339$ 

 
 

The annual requirements to amortize the general obligation bonds payable outstanding as of June 30, 2018 is as         
follows: 

 
Year Ended 

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2019 3,035,000$     12,209,725$   15,244,725$   
2020 3,590,000       13,228,794     16,818,794     
2021 3,835,000       12,947,441     16,782,441     
2022 4,645,000       12,808,225     17,453,225     
2023 2,685,000       12,599,100     15,284,100     

2024-2028 29,840,000     59,701,750     89,541,750     
2029-2033 60,155,000     50,104,900     110,259,900   
2034-2038 99,305,000     34,261,875     133,566,875   
2039-2043 129,865,000   11,448,450     141,313,450   

Total 336,955,000$ 219,310,260$ 556,265,260$ 

 

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
28 of 60



 

22 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 

H. Bond Premium 
 
Bond premium arises when the market rate of interest is lower than the stated interest rate on the bond. Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that the premium increase the face value of the bond and then 
amortize the premium over the life of the bond. 
 
The District has issued bonds at a premium. The premiums are being amortized over the life of the debt using the 
straight-line method. 

 

       Premiums issued on the debt resulted in an effective interest rate as follows: 
 
        

       

2013 2015 2016 2018
Series A Series B Series C Series D
Bonds Bonds Bonds Bonds

Total Interest Payments on Bonds 113,607,493$ 88,265,753$  42,624,776$  18,093,285$  
Less Bond Premium (8,336,717)     (6,379,386)     (2,852,014)     (939,590)       
Net Interest Payments 105,270,776$ 81,886,367$  39,772,762$  17,153,695$  

Par Amount of Bonds 160,000,000$ 117,040,000$ 62,000,000$  25,000,000$  
Periods 25 25 25 25
Effective Interest Rate 2.630% 2.790% 2.560% 2.740%

 
              
I. Construction Commitments 

 
As of June 30, 2018 the Building Fund (21-39) had the following commitments with respect to unfinished capital 
projects:  
 

Project Commitment
*Expected Date of 
Final Completion

Percentage 
Complete

Carmel Valley MS Drama/Music Classrooms 1,535,328$       08/27/18 95%
Diegueno MS Modernization Phase 1 3,770,142         08/26/19 <5%
Earl Warren MS Campus Reconstruction Phase 2 1,005,759         10/30/18 <5%
La Costa Canyon HS 200's Renovation 419,500            08/27/18 <5%
Oak Crest MS Science Classrooms/Quad 12,691,847       08/27/18 54%
Pacific Trails MS 2nd Classroom Building 17,157,148       08/27/18 66%
San Dieguito HS Academy Arts & Humanities Building 28,365,319       08/26/19 12%
Torrey Pines HS Performing Arts Center 18,964,206       06/30/19 31%  
 
*Expected date of final completion subject to change. 

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
29 of 60



 

23 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

J. Pension Plans 
 
The following information presented below is the District’s government-wide pension plan amounts for CalPERS 
and CalSTRS.  As of June 30, 2018, the Building Fund (21-39) or bond fund was 0.17% of the District’s total 
State Teachers’ Retirement System expenditures and 3.21% of the District’s total Public Employee’s Retirement 
System expenditures. 

 
1. General Information About the Pension Plans 

 
a. Plan Descriptions 

 
Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans maintained 
by agencies of the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State 
Teachers Retirement System (CalSTRS) and classified employees are members of the California 
Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established 
by State statute and Local Government resolution. Support by the State for the CalSTRS plan is such 
that the plan has a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68. CalSTRS and 
CalPERS issue publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding 
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on their respective 
websites. 
 

b. Benefits Provided 
 
CalSTRS and CalPERS provide service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members. Benefits are based on years of credited service, 
equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to 
retire at age 62 for normal benefits or at age 55 with statutorily reduced benefits. Employees hired 
prior to January 1, 2013 are eligible to retire at age 60 for normal benefits or at age 55 with statutorily 
reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. 
All members are eligible for death benefits after one year of total service. 
 
The Plan’s provisions and benefits are in effect at June 30, 2018 are summarized as follows: 
 

Before On or After
Hire Date Jan. 1, 2013 Jan. 1, 2013
Benefit Formula 2% at 60 2% at 62
Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 Years 5 Years
Benefit Payments Monthly for Life Monthly for Life
Retirement Age 50-62 55-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.1 - 2.4%* 1.0-2.4%*
Required Employee Contribution Rates (at June 30, 2018) 10.250%       9.205%**
Required Employer Contribution Rates (at June 30, 2018) 14.430% 14.430%
Required State Contribution Rates (at June 30, 2018) 7.429% 7.429%

*Amounts are limited to 120% of Social Security Wage Base.
**The rate imposed on CalSTRS 2% at 62 members is based on the normal cost of benefits.

CalSTRS

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
30 of 60



 

24 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 

Before On or After
Hire Date Jan. 1, 2013 Jan. 1, 2013
Benefit Formula 2% at 55 2% at 62
Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 Years 5 Years
Benefit Payments Monthly for Life Monthly for Life
Retirement Age 50-62 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.1 - 2.5%* 1.0-2.5%*
Required Employee Contribution Rates (at June 30, 2018) 7.000% 6.500%
Required Employer Contribution Rates (at June 30, 2018) 15.531% 15.531%

*Amounts are limited to 120% of Social Security Wage Base.

CalPERS

 
 

c. Contributions 
 
CalSTRS 
 
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 (measurement date), Section 22950 of the 
California Education Code requires members to contribute monthly to the system 9.205% (if hired 
on or after January 1, 2013) or 10.250% (if hired before January 1, 2013) of the creditable 
compensation upon which members' contributions under this part are based.  In addition the employer 
required rates established by the CalSTRS Board have been established at 12.58% of creditable 
compensation for the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 and 14.43% for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018. Rates are defined in Section 22950.5 through measurement period ending June 30, 
2021. Beginning in the fiscal year 2021-22 and for each fiscal year thereafter, the CalSTRS Board 
has the authority to increase or decrease percentages paid specific to reflect the contribution required 
to eliminate by June 30, 2046, the remaining unfunded actuarial obligation with respect to service 
credited to members before July 1, 2014, as determined by the Board based upon a recommendation 
from its actuary. 
 
CalPERS 
 
Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall 
be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The CalPERS Board retains the 
authority to amend contribution rates. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS' 
annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary 
to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to 
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between 
the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. For the measurement period 
ended June 30, 2017 (measurement date), employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 paid in 7.00%, 
employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 paid in 6.00%, and the employer's contribution rate 
was13.88% of covered payroll. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, employees hired prior to 
January 1, 2013 contributed 7.00%, employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 contributed 6.50% 
and the employer’s contribution rate was 15.531%. 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
31 of 60



 

25 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

On Behalf Payments 
 
Consistent with Section 22955.1 of the California Education Code, the State of California makes 
contributions to CalSTRS on behalf of employees working for the District. For the measurement 
period ended June 30, 2017 (measurement date) the State contributed 7.429% of salaries creditable 
to CalSTRS. In accordance with GASB 85 the District recorded these contributions as revenue and 
expense in the fund financial statements based on contributions made for the measurement period 
(current financial resources measurement focus). Contributions reported each fiscal year are based 
on the District’s proportionate share of the State’s contribution for the measurement period.  
 
Contributions made by the State on behalf of the District’s Building Fund (21-39) for the past three 
fiscal years is as follows:  
 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

Contribution 
Rate

Contribution 
Amount

2016 4.350% 4,012$          
2017 5.390% 5,462            
2018 7.429% 11,857           

 
The State’s pension expense associated with the District’s Building Fund (21-39) employees for the  
for the past three fiscal years is as follows:  

On-Behalf
Year Ended 

June 30, 
Pension 
Expense

2016 7,664$            
2017 13,481            
2018 7,205               

 
d. Contributions Recognized 

 
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 (fiscal year June 30, 2018), the contributions 
recognized for each plan were: 

District Share of Bond Share of
CalSTRS CalSTRS

Contributions - Employer 8,607,389$          19,966$              
Contributions - State On Behalf Payements 5,111,403            46                      
Total Contributions 13,718,792$        20,012$              

District Share of Bond Share of
CalPERS CalPERS

Contributions - Employer 2,785,419$          89,576$              
Contributions - State On Behalf Payements -                     -                     
Total Contributions 2,785,419$          89,576$              

 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
32 of 60



 

26 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 
2. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

 
As of June 30, 2018, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net pension 
liability of each plan as follows: 
 

District Bond
Proportionate Proportionate
Share of Net Share of Net

Pension Liability Pension Liability
CalSTRS 119,674,988$      442,453$            
CalPERS 37,278,559         1,198,884           
Total Net Pension Liability 156,953,547$      1,641,337$         

 
 
The District's net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension 
liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of June 30, 2016 rolled forward to June 30, 2017 using standard update procedures. The District's proportion 
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the 
pension plans relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. 
 
The District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 
2018 were as follows: 
 
 

District's State's Total For Bond State's Total For 
Proportionate Proportionate District Proportionate Proportionate Bond 

Share Share Employees Share Share Employees
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.1209% 0.0692% 0.1901% 0.0003% 0.0001% 0.0004%
Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.1294% 0.0768% 0.2062% 0.0005% 0.0002% 0.0007%
Change in Proportion 0.0085% 0.0076% 0.0161% 0.0002% 0.0001% 0.0003%

District Share for CalSTRS Bond Share for CalSTRS

 
 
 

District's Share Bond Share
CalPERS CalPERS

Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.1525% 0.0047%
Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.1562% 0.0050%
Change in Proportion 0.0037% 0.0003%

 
 
 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
33 of 60



 

27 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 

a. Pension Expense 
 

For the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 (fiscal year June 30, 2018), pension expense was 
recognized as follows: 
 
 
Pension expense for the CalSTRS plan was as follows:

District Share of Bond Share of
CalSTRS CalSTRS

Change in Net Pension Liability (Asset) 21,877,683$        214,712$            
State on Behalf Pension Expense 3,106,036            28                      
Employer Contributions to Pension Expense 9,928,410            38,222                
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Outflows of Resources

  Employer Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date (1,254,278)          (18,256)               
  Differences between actual and expected experiences (413,064)             (1,527)                
  Changes in assumptions (20,692,537)         (76,503)               
  Changes in proportionate share (5,320,417)          (127,351)             
  Net difference between projected and actual earnings 7,828                  18                      

Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources
  Differences between actual and expected experiences (7,328)                (18)                     
  Changes in proportionate share (775,732)             (2,969)                
  Net difference between projected and actual earnings 11,326,648          41,876                

Total Pension Expense 17,783,249$        68,232$              

 
 
 
 
Pension expense for the CalPERS plan was as follows:

District Share of Bond Share of
CalPERS CalPERS

Change in Net Pension Liability (Asset) 7,152,214$          271,758$            
Employer Contributions to Pension Expense 3,188,655            85,680                
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Outflows of Resources

  Employer Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date (404,428)             3,896                  
  Differences between actual and expected experiences (214,385)             (6,569)                
  Changes in assumptions (5,808,128)          (186,790)             
  Changes in proportionate share (342,088)             (47,937)               
  Net difference between projected and actual earnings 2,096,111            66,823                

Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources
  Changes in assumptions (352,606)             (11,964)               
  Changes in proportionate share (63,572)               (8,537)                
  Net difference between projected and actual earnings 1,385,776            45,144                

Total Pension Expense 6,637,549$          211,504$            

 
 
 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
34 of 60



 

28 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 
b. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

 
At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

CalSTRS CalPERS Total CalSTRS CalPERS Total
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 9,928,410$     3,188,655$     13,117,065$   38,222$         85,680$         123,902$       
Differences between actual and expected experience 413,064         1,686,569      2,099,633      1,527            -               1,527            
Changes in assumptions 20,692,537     5,808,128      26,500,665     76,503           186,790         263,293         
Changes in employer's proportionate share 6,015,783      1,260,330      7,276,113      127,441         63,295           190,736         
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 19,561           5,412,262      5,431,823      46                 172,539         172,585         

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 37,069,355$   17,355,944$   54,425,299$   243,739$       508,304$       752,043$       

CalSTRS CalPERS Total CalSTRS CalPERS Total
Differences between actual and expected experience (11,677)$        -$              (11,677)$        (27)$              -$              (27)$              
Changes in assumptions -               (705,212)        (705,212)        -               (23,929)         (23,929)         
Changes in employer's proportionate share (1,551,465)     (127,144)        (1,678,609)     (5,938)           (17,073)         (23,011)         
Net difference between projected and actual earnings (11,326,648)   (4,263,628)     (15,590,276)   (41,876)         (136,541)        (178,417)        

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources (12,889,790)$  (5,095,984)$   (17,985,774)$  (47,841)$        (177,543)$      (225,384)$      

District Share of Deferred Inflows of Resources Bond Share of Deferred Inflows of Resources

District Share of Deferred Outflows of Resources Bond Share of Deferred Outflows of Resources

 
 
Pension contributions made subsequent to measurement date reported as deferred outflows of 
resources will be recognized as a portion of pension expense in the year ended June 30, 2019. The 
remaining amounts reported as deferred outflows or deferred inflows of resources will be recognized 
as an increase or decrease to pension expense over a five year period. Pension expense resulting from 
deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized as follows: 
 
 

Year Ended Net Effect
June 30 CalSTRS CalPERS CalSTRS CalPERS On Expenses

2019 16,760,045$      7,725,418$        (3,614,721)$      (2,561,280)$      18,309,462$      
2020 6,831,634         4,536,763         (3,611,087)        (1,122,354)        6,634,956         
2021 6,827,711         3,332,713         (2,832,320)        (706,176)           6,621,928         
2022 6,649,965         1,761,050         (2,831,662)        (706,174)           4,873,179         
Total 37,069,355$      17,355,944$      (12,889,790)$     (5,095,984)$      36,439,525$      

District Share of DeferredDistrict Share of Deferred
Outflows of Resources Inflows of Resources

 
 

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
35 of 60



 

29 
 

 
SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

               

 

Year Ended Net Effect
June 30 CalSTRS CalPERS CalSTRS CalPERS On Expenses

2019 89,615$            181,146$          (13,455)$           (88,911)$           168,395$          
2020 51,392              150,444            (13,446)            (43,211)            145,179            
2021 51,384              111,731            (10,471)            (22,711)            129,933            
2022 51,348              64,983              (10,469)            (22,710)            83,152              
Total 243,739$          508,304$          (47,841)$           (177,543)$         526,659$          

Outflows of Resources Inflows of Resources
Bond Share of Deferred Bond Share of Deferred

 
c. Actuarial Assumptions 

 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuations were determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 
 
 

CalSTRS CalPERS
Valuation Date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.10% 7.15%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.50% 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase 0.5%-6.4% (1) 3.10-9.00% (1) 
Investment Rate of Return 7.10% (2) 7.50% (2) 
Mortality 0.073%-22.86% (3) 0.466%-32.54% (3) 

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
(3) RP2000 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS/CalPERS specific experience

 
d. Discount Rate 

 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10% for CalSTRS and 7.15% for 
CalPERS The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions 
from plan members, employers, and state contributing agencies will be made at statutory contribution 
rates. To determine whether the District bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate 
for each plan, CalSTRS and CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount 
rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of 
the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current discount rates are adequate and the use of 
the District bond rate calculation is not necessary for either plan. The stress test results are presented 
in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS and CalSTRS websites. 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
36 of 60



 

30 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 
 
The CalPERS discount rate was increased from 7.50% to 7.65% at measurement date June 30, 2015 
(Fiscal year June 30, 2016)  to correct for an adjustment to exclude administrative expenses. 
Subsequently CalPERS discount rate was decreased from 7.65% to 7.15% at measurement date June 
30, 2017 (Fiscal year June 30, 2018) to adjust for changes resulting from actuarially determined 
amounts.  
 
The CalSTRS discount rate was adjusted from 7.60% to 7.10% for  measurement date June 30, 2017 
(Fiscal year June 30, 2018) to adjust for changes resulting from a new actuarial experience study.  

 
According to Paragraph 30 of GASB Statement No. 68, the long-term discount rate should be 
determined without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The investment return 
assumption used in the accounting valuations is net of administrative expenses. Administrative 
expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly 
higher Total Pension Liability and Net Pension Liability. CalSTRS and CalPERS checked the 
materiality threshold for the difference in calculation and did not find it to be a material difference. 
 
CalSTRS and CalPERS are scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of their regular 
Asset Liability Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. 
Any changes to the discount rate will require board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For these 
reasons, CalSTRS and CalPERS expect to continue using a discount rate net of administrative 
expenses for GASB 67 and GASB 68 calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalSTRS 
and CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in calculation until such time 
as they have changed their methodology. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalSTRS and CalPERS took into account both 
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. 
Using historical returns of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated 
over the short-term (first 10 years) and long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. 
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits 
was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent 
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated 
using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to 
the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest quarter of one percent. 
 
The tables below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return 
was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 
 
 
 
 

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
37 of 60



 

31 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

Assumed Long Term
Allocation Expected

Asset Class 6/30/2016 Return*
Global Equity 47.00% 6.30%
Fixed Income 12.00% 0.30%
Real Estate 13.00% 5.20%
Private Equity 13.00% 9.30%
Absolute Return 9.00% 2.90%
Inflation Sensitive 4.00% 3.80%
Cash/Liquidity 2.00% -1.00%

*20 year geometric average used for long term expected real rate of return

Assumed
Allocation Real Return Real Return

Asset Class 6/30/2016 Years 1-10(1) Years 11+(2)
Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Debt Securities 20.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Assets 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.00% -0.55% -1.05%

(1) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(2) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

CalPERS

CalSTRS

 
e. Sensitivity to Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

 
The following represents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan, 
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the District's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point 
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

CalSTRS CalPERS CalSTRS CalPERS
1% Decrease 6.10% 6.15% 6.10% 6.15%
Net Pension Liability 175,720,876$     54,848,706$       649,662$           1,763,943$        

Current Discount Rate 7.10% 7.15% 7.10% 7.15%
Net Pension Liability 119,674,988$     37,278,559$       442,453$           1,198,884$        

1% Increase 8.10% 8.15% 8.10% 8.15%
Net Pension Liability 74,189,952$       22,702,651$       274,289$           730,121$           

District Share Bond Share

 
 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
38 of 60



 

32 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 
 

f. Total Pension Liability, Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position and Net Pension Liability 
 
 

 
CalSTRS - District Share

Total Plan Net State's Share District's Share
Pension Fiduciary Pension of Net Pension of Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability Liability Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)  (c)  (a) - (b) - (c) 

Balance at June 30, 2017 513,216,036$   359,474,011$   153,742,025$   55,944,720$    97,797,305$    

Changes for the year:
Change in proportionate share 43,653,412      30,576,339      13,077,073      6,209,250        6,867,823        
Service cost 12,507,121      -                 12,507,121      4,659,941        7,847,180        
Interest 41,718,592      -                 41,718,592      15,543,640      26,174,952      
Differences between expected and 
   actual experience 822,945          -                 822,945          306,616          516,329          
Change in assumptions 41,225,650      -                 41,225,650      15,359,978      25,865,672      
Contributions - Employer -                 8,607,380        (8,607,380)       (3,206,964)       (5,400,416)       
Contributions - Employee -                 7,096,890        (7,096,890)       (2,644,181)       (4,452,709)       
Contributions - State On Behalf -                 5,111,398        (5,111,398)       (1,904,420)       (3,206,978)       
Net investment income -                 51,903,687      (51,903,687)     (19,338,434)     (32,565,253)     
Other income -                 148,512          (148,512)         (55,333)           (93,179)           
Benefit payments, including refunds
   of employee contributions (28,674,275)     (28,674,275)     -                 -                 -                 
Administrative expenses -                 (376,136)         376,136          140,142          235,994          
Borrowing costs -                 (119,540)         119,540          44,538            75,002            
Other expenses -                 (21,143)           21,143            7,877              13,266            

Net Changes 111,253,445    74,253,112      37,000,333      15,122,650      21,877,683      

Balance at June 30, 2018 624,469,481$   433,727,123$   190,742,358$   71,067,370$    119,674,988$   

Increase (Decrease)

 
  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
39 of 60



 

33 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 
 

      

CalSTRS - Bond Share
Total Plan Net State's Share Bond's Share

Pension Fiduciary Pension of Net Pension of Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability Liability Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)  (c)  (a) - (b) - (c) 

Balance at June 30, 2017 1,036,885$      726,270$         310,615$         82,874$          227,741$         

Changes for the year:
Change in proportionate share 736,130          515,610          220,520          61,302            159,218          
Service cost 39,821            -                 39,821            10,809            29,012            
Interest 132,828          -                 132,828          36,056            96,772            
Differences between expected and 
   actual experience 2,620              -                 2,620              711                1,909              
Change in assumptions 131,258          -                 131,258          35,630            95,628            
Contributions - Employer -                 27,405            (27,405)           (7,439)             (19,966)           
Contributions - Employee -                 22,596            (22,596)           (6,134)             (16,462)           
Contributions - State on Behalf -                 16,274            (16,274)           (4,418)             (11,856)           
Net investment income -                 165,256          (165,256)         (44,858)           (120,398)         
Other income -                 473                (473)               (128)               (345)               
Benefit payments, including refunds
   of employee contributions (91,296)           (91,296)           -                 -                 -                 
Administrative expenses -                 (1,198)             1,198              325                873                
Borrowing costs -                 (381)               381                103                278                
Other expenses -                 (67)                 67                  18                  49                  

Net Changes 951,361          654,672          296,689          81,977            214,712          

Balance at June 30, 2018 1,988,246$      1,380,942$      607,304$         164,851$         442,453$         

Increase (Decrease)

     

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
40 of 60



 

34 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

  

 

CalPERS - District Share
Total Plan Net

Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at June 30, 2017 115,414,852$   85,288,507$    30,126,345$    

Changes for the year:
Change in proportionate share 2,737,504        2,022,943        714,561          
Service cost 3,172,955        -                 3,172,955        
Interest 8,931,865        -                 8,931,865        
Differences between expected and 
   actual experience 830,533          -                 830,533          
Changes in assumptions 7,260,160        -                 7,260,160        
Contributions - Employer -                 2,785,411        (2,785,411)       
Contributions - Employee -                 1,401,404        (1,401,404)       
Net plan to plan resource movement -                 (212)               212                
Net investment income -                 9,700,069        (9,700,069)       
Benefit payments, including refunds
   of employee contributions (5,816,670)       (5,816,670)       -                 
Administrative expenses -                 (128,812)         128,812          

Net Changes 17,116,347      9,964,133        7,152,214        

Balance at June 30, 2018 132,531,199$   95,252,640$    37,278,559$    

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
 

 

CalPERS - Bond Share
Total Plan Net

Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balance at June 30, 2017 3,551,849$      2,624,723$      927,126$         

Changes for the year:
Change in proportionate share 247,948          183,227          64,721            
Service cost 102,043          -                 102,043          
Interest 287,250          -                 287,250          
Differences between expected and 
   actual experience 26,710            -                 26,710            
Changes in assumptions 233,488          -                 233,488          
Contributions - Employer -                 89,579            (89,579)           
Contributions - Employee -                 45,069            (45,069)           
Net plan to plan resource movement -                 (7)                   7                    
Net investment income -                 311,956          (311,956)         
Benefit payments, including refunds
   of employee contributions (187,065)         (187,065)         -                 
Administrative expenses -                 (4,143)             4,143              

Net Changes 710,374          438,616          271,758          

Balance at June 30, 2018 4,262,223$      3,063,339$      1,198,884$      

Increase (Decrease)

 
 
 Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary position is available in the separately issued  
 CalSTRS and CalPERS financial reports.  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
41 of 60



 

35 
 

 
SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

               

 
K. Compensated Absences 

 
As of June 30, 2018, the District had a compensated absences liability associated with employees charged to 
Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) as follows:     
              

                                

Proposition AA 
Building Fund 

(21-39)

135,514$          Accrued Vacation Balances

 
    

L. Subsequent Events 
 
Implementation of New Accounting Guidance 
 
The District has adopted accounting policies compliant with new pronouncements issued by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) that are effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Those newly 
implemented pronouncements are as follows: 
 

GASB Statement No. 88 – Certain Disclosures Related To Debt, Including Direct Borrowing and Direct 
Placements. 
 
The primary objective of this statement is to improve the information that is disclosed in notes to government 
financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which 
liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. 
 
This statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that arises 
from a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or more 
payments to settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established. This statement 
requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to the financial statements, 
including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt, and terms specified in debt 
agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination 
events with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses. 
 
For notes to financial statements related to debt, this statement also requires that existing and additional 
information be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt. 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
42 of 60



 

 
 

 

 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board but not considered a part of the basic financial statements. 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
43 of 60



 

36 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Schedule of the Bond’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

                     

 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

0.1294% 0.1209% 0.1196% 0.1263% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

119,674,988$ 97,797,306$   80,535,333$   73,782,939$   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

71,067,638     60,499,140     50,492,934     46,983,210     N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Total 190,742,626$ 158,296,446$ 131,028,267$ 120,766,149$ -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

District's covered-employee payroll 68,421,216$   68,951,765$   60,074,753$   55,280,293$   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

174.91% 141.83% 134.06% 133.47% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

69.46% 70.04% 74.02% 76.52% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

0.0005% 0.0003% 0.0003% 0.0003% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

442,453$       227,743$       189,457$       179,292$       N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

164,850         161,762         134,648         -                   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Total 607,303$       389,505$       324,105$       179,292$       -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Bond's covered-employee payroll 158,712$       158,712$       139,897$       130,045$       N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

178.78% 143.49% 135.43% 137.87% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

69.46% 70.04% 74.02% 76.52% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years; however, until a full ten year trend is compiled, this schedule provides the information only for those years for which information is
available.  

State's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset) associated with the District

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage of
its covered-employee payroll

Fiscal Year

District's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset)
District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability

Bond's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset)
Bond's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset)
State's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset) associated with the Bond

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability

Bond's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage of
its covered-employee payroll

 

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
44 of 60



 

37 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Schedule of Bond’s Contributions 

California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

                     

 

 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
District:
Contractually required contribution 9,928,410$     8,674,132$     6,446,021$     4,908,890$     N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(9,928,410)     (8,674,132)     (6,446,021)     (4,908,890)     N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

District's covered-employee payroll 68,803,950$   68,951,765$   60,074,756$   55,280,293$   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

14.43% 12.58% 10.73% 8.88% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Bond Portion:
Contractually required contribution 38,222$         19,966$         9,549$           7,536$           N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(38,222)         (19,966)         (9,549)           (7,536)           N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Bond's covered-employee payroll 264,879$       158,712$       88,990$         84,861$         N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

14.43% 12.58% 10.73% 8.88% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

Fiscal Year

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years; however, until a full ten year trend is compiled, this schedule provides the information only for those years for which
information is available.  

 

 

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
45 of 60



 

38 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Schedule of the Bond’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

                     

 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

0.1562% 0.1525% 0.1448% 0.1476% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

37,278,559$   30,126,345$   21,336,448$   16,750,628$   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

District's covered-employee payroll 20,056,300$   20,047,717$   18,471,841$   16,097,264$   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

185.87% 150.27% 115.51% 104.06% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

71.87% 73.90% 79.43% 83.38% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

0.0050% 0.0047% 0.0049% 0.0047% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

1,198,884$     927,127$       723,958$       531,976$       N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Bond's covered-employee payroll 644,988$       568,464$       546,190$       492,711$       N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

185.88% 163.09% 132.55% 107.97% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

71.87% 73.90% 79.43% 83.38% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years; however, until a full ten year trend is compiled, this schedule provides the information only for those years for which information is
available.  

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage of
its covered-employee payroll

Fiscal Year

District's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset)
District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability

Bond's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset)
Bond's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset)

Bond's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage of
its covered-employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total pension liability

 

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
46 of 60



 

39 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Schedule of the Bond’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

                     

 

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
District:
Contractually required contribution 3,188,655$     2,784,227$     2,188,359$     1,894,809$     N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(3,188,655)     (2,784,227)     (2,188,359)     (1,894,809)     N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Bond's covered-employee payroll 20,530,906$   20,047,717$   18,471,841$   16,097,264$   N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

15.531% 13.888% 11.847% 11.771% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Bond Portion:
Contractually required contribution 85,680$         89,576$         67,346$         64,292$         N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

(85,680)         (89,576)         (67,346)         (64,292)         N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Bond's covered-employee payroll 551,671$       644,988$       568,464$       546,190$       N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

15.531% 13.888% 11.847% 11.771% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information

Fiscal Year

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years; however, until a full ten year trend is compiled, this schedule provides the information only for those years for which information is
available.  

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
47 of 60



 

40 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

Reporting Period June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018
Measurement Date 06/30/14 06/30/15 06/30/16 06/30/17
Valuation date 06/30/13 06/30/14 06/30/15 06/30/16
Experience Study 07/01/06-06/30/10 07/01/06-06/30/10 07/01/06-06/30/10 07/01/10-06/30/15
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
Investment Rate of Return 7.60% 7.60% 7.60% 7.10%
Consumer Price Inflation 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 2.75%
Wage Growth (Average) 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.50%
Post-Retirement Benefit Increase 2.00% Simple 2.00% Simple 2.00% Simple 2.00% Simple

Reporting Period June 30, 2015 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018
Measurement Date 06/30/14 06/30/15 06/30/16 06/30/17
Valuation date 06/30/13 06/30/14 06/30/15 06/30/16
Experience Study 07/01/97-06/30/11 07/01/97-06/30/11 07/01/97-06/30/11 07/01/97-06/30/11
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% 7.65% 7.65% 7.15%
Consumer Price Inflation 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%
Wage Growth (Average) 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Post-Retirement Benefit Increase 2.00% Simple 2.00% Simple 2.00% Simple 2.00% Simple

actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the measurement:

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements
using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table please refer to the April 2014 experience study report (based
on demographic data from 1997 to 2011) available on CalPERS website. 

7.50% to 7.65%. In 2018 the discount rate was changed from 7.65% to 7.15%

Schedule of District's Contributions - California Public Employees' Retirement System

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2013, 2014, 2015, & 2016 and rolling forward the total pension liabilities to June 30, 2014, 2015, 2016 & 2017 (measurement dates).
The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2014, June 30, 2015, June 30, 2016 & June 30, 2017 used the following

the Mortality Improvement Scale (MP-2016) table issued by the Society of Actuaries. Additional information can be obtained by
reviewing the CalSTRS Actuarial Experience Study on CalSTRS website. 

Schedule of District's Proportionate Share - California Public Employees' Retirement System

1) Benefit Changes: In 2015, 2016, 2017 & 2018 there were no changes to benefits

2) Changes in Assumptions: In 2015 & 2017 there were no changes in assumptions. In 2016 the discount rate was changed from

CalSTRS  changed  the  mortality  assumptions based on the July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2015 experience study adopted by the
CalSTRS  board in February 2017. CalSTRS uses a generational mortality assumption, which involves the use of a base mortality
table  and  projection  scales  to  reflect  expected  annual  reductions  in  mortality rates at each age, resulting in increases in life
expectancies  each  year  into the future. The base mortality tables are CalSTRS custom tables derived to best fit the patterns of 
mortality  among CalSTRS members. The projection scale was set equal to 110 percent of the ultimate improvement factor from

financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013, 2014, 2015 & 2016 and rolling forward the total pension liabilities to the
June 30, 2014, 2015, 2016 & 2017 (measurement dates). In determining the total pension liability, the financial reporting actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Schedule of District's Proportionate Share - California State Teachers' Retirement System

1) Benefit Changes: In 2015, 2016, 2017 & 2018 there were no changes to benefits

2) Changes in Assumptions: In 2015, 2016 & 2017 there were no changes in assumptions. In 2018 there was a change in discount
rate from 7.60% to 7.10%

Schedule of District's Contributions - California State Teachers' Retirement System

The total pension liability for California State Teachers' Retirement System was determined by applying update procedures to the

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
48 of 60



 

41 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY   INFORMATION

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
49 of 60



 

41 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
General Obligation Bonds Project List 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 

Bond proceeds will be expended to modernize, replace, renovate, construct, acquire, equip, furnish and otherwise 
improve the facilities of the District located at the following locations: 

Canyon Crest Academy Carmel Valley Middle School 
Diegueño Middle School Earl Warren Middle School 
La Costa Canyon High School La Costa Valley Site 
Pacific Trails Middle School Oak Crest Middle School 
San Dieguito Academy Sunset High School 
Torrey Pines High School 

 

 

Project Name Location of Project Status of Project

Building B Landscape/Pathway Enhancement  Canyon Crest Academy In Progress

Performing Arts Center, Drama Classroom
Modernization, and New Music Classroom Building Carmel Valley Middle School In Progress

Buildings B & G Modernization Phase 1 Diegueño Middle School In Progress

Campus Reconstruction Phase 1 Earl Warren Middle School Completed

Campus Reconstruction Phase 2 Earl Warren Middle School In Progress

HVAC 200's/Gym/Performing Arts Center La Costa Canyon High School Completed

Media Center Landscaping La Costa Canyon High School Completed

200's Building Renovation La Costa Canyon High School In Progress

Interim Housing and Science Classrooms/Quad Oak Crest Middle School In Progress

Second Classroom Building Pacific Trails Middle School In Progress

Math and Science Building, Interim Housing San Dieguito High School Academy Completed

Technology Infrastructure Upgrade San Dieguito High School Academy Completed

Culinary Arts Classroom San Dieguito High School Academy Completed

Arts and Humanities Building San Dieguito High School Academy In Progress

Building B Science Wing Classrooms Renovation Torrey Pines High School Completed

Multi-media and Audio Visual Improvements - 
Buildings E and G Torrey Pines High School Completed

Interim Housing (Arts) and Culinary Arts Torrey Pines High School Completed

Performing Arts Center Complex Torrey Pines High School In Progress
 

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
50 of 60



 

 
 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
51 of 60



 

42 
 

 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

 
Governing Board Members and 
Citizens’ Oversight Committee 
San Dieguito Union High School District 
Encinitas, California 

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) of San Dieguito 
Union High School District, which comprise the balance sheet as of June 30, 2018, and the related statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 15, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered San Dieguito Union High School 
District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of San Dieguito Union High School District’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of San Dieguito Union High School District’s internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether San Dieguito Union High School District’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards.  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
52 of 60



 

43 
 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

 

 

El Cajon, California 
March 15, 2019 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
53 of 60



 

44 
 

 
 

 
Independent Auditor’s Report on Performance 

 
 
Governing Board Members and 
Citizens’ Oversight Committee 
San Dieguito Union High School District 
Encinitas, California 

We were engaged to conduct a performance audit of the San Dieguito Union High School District Proposition AA 
Building Fund (21-39) for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Management’s Responsibility for Performance Compliance 
 
Our audit was limited to the objectives listed with the report which includes the District’s compliance with the 
performance requirements as referred to in Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XIIIA, Section 1(b)(3)(C) of the 
California Constitution. Management is responsible for the District’s compliance with those requirements. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
We conducted this performance audit in accordance with the standards applicable to performance audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our 
conclusions based on our audit objectives.  
 
In planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of the Fund’s internal control in 
order to determine if the internal controls were adequate to help ensure the Fund’s compliance with the requirements 
of Proposition 39 and outlined in Article XIIIA, Section 1(b)(3)(C) of the California Constitution, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) San Dieguito 
Union High School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District’s internal control.  
 
In connection with our performance audit, we performed an audit for compliance as required in the performance 
requirements for the Proposition AA General Obligation Bond for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The objective 
of the audit of compliance applicable to San Dieguito Union High School District is to determine with reasonable 
assurance that: 

 

• The proceeds from the sale of the Proposition AA Bonds were only used for the purposes set forth in the 
ballot measure and not for any other purpose, such as teacher and administrative salaries.  
 

• The Governing Board of the District, in establishing the approved projects set forth in the ballot measure to 
modernize, replace, renovate, construct, acquire, equip, furnish, and otherwise improve facilities of the 
District as noted in the bond project list.  

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
54 of 60



 

45 
 

In performing our audit of compliance, we performed procedures including but not limited to those listed as follows: 

Internal Control Evaluation 
 
Procedure Performed 
 
Inquiries were made of management regarding internal controls to:  
 

 Prevent fraud, waste, or abuse regarding Proposition AA resources  
 Prevent material misstatement in the Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) financial statements  
 Ensure all expenditures are properly allocated  
 Ensure adequate separation of duties exists in the accounting of Proposition AA funds. All purchase 

requisitions are reviewed for proper supporting documentation. The Project Manager or the Executive 
Director of Planning Services gives directions and submits documentation to the Construction and Facilities 
Coordinator to initiate a purchase requisition. The budget is verified by the Facilities Planning Analyst 
(Budget) and supporting documents are reviewed by a second Facilities Planning Analyst (Contracts). This 
requisition is first forwarded to the Executive Director of Planning Services for an initial review and then 
forwarded to the finance office where the Budget Analyst verifies the budget string and the requisition is 
subsequently reviewed and approved by the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Facilities Officer, and the 
Director of Purchasing to ensure the requested purchase is an allowable project cost in accordance with the 
Proposition AA ballot measure initiative approved by local voters as well as the board approved budget, and 
by the Accounting Specialist that all expenditures are properly recorded by the project and expense category. 
Once the purchase requisition has gone through the approval process, the Facilities Planning Analyst 
(Contracts) creates a purchase order, which is provided to the vendor, who proceeds to provide the requested 
services or goods. Other copies of the purchase order are also submitted to the finance office, purchasing 
office, and the Facilities Planning Analyst (Budget) for monitoring and review.  

 
When the invoice is received the Executive Director of Planning Services and Facilities Planning Analyst 
(Budget) verify that the charges are consistent with the amounts on the approved contract/purchase order, 
then the invoice is subsequently signed and approved by the Project Manager and Chief Facilities Officer 
and either e-mailed or scanned to the finance office for subsequent approval. Invoices are approved by the 
Accounting Technician and monitored by the Chief Financial Officer in the finance office and subsequently 
processed through the accounts payable system of the District for payment. The invoices and support 
documents are submitted to the San Diego County Office of Education’s Commercial Warrant Unit for audit 
to ensure compliance with procurement regulations and business practices before payment is released. The 
commercial warrants are routed back to the District finance office where they are signed by the Chief 
Financial Officer and then forwarded to the Facilities Planning and Construction Office for appropriate 
distribution.  

 
Results of Procedures Performed 
 
The results of our audit determined the internal control procedures as implemented are sufficient to meet the financial 
and compliance objectives required by generally accepted accounting principles and applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Tests of Expenditures 
 
Procedures Performed 
 
We tested expenditures to determine whether Proposition AA funds were spent solely on voter and Board approved 
school facilities projects as set forth in the Bond Project Lists and language of the Proposition AA ballot measure 
language. Our testing included $46,655,940 of expenditures which was 94.7% of total bond expenditures for the year. 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
55 of 60



 

46 
 

Results of Procedures Performed 

 
We found no instances where expenditures tested were not in compliance with the terms of the Proposition AA ballot 
measure and applicable state laws and regulations. 
 
Tests of Contracts and Bid Procedures  
 
Procedures Performed 
 
We reviewed the District’s board minutes for approval of construction contracts and change orders, if any, to 
determine compliance with the District’s policy and Public Contract Code provisions related to biddings and 
contracting. 
 
Results of Procedures Performed 
 
We noted no instances where the District was out of compliance with respect to contracts and bidding procedures.  
 
Facilities Site Review  
 
Procedures Performed 
 
We reviewed the Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee minutes and agenda and other pertinent information 
on Proposition AA designated projects and determined the Proposition AA funds expended for the year ended June 
30, 2018 were for valid facilities acquisition and construction purposes as stated in the Bond Project List. Auditors 
performed review of significant bond projects.  
 
Results of Procedures Performed:  
 
Based on our review of the minutes and agenda of the Independent Citizens’ Oversight Committee, the documentation 
and pertinent information of the Proposition AA designated projects, and review of project sites, it appears the 
construction work performed was consistent with the Bond Project List. 
 
Citizens’ Oversight Committee  
 
Procedures Performed 
 
We have reviewed the minutes of the Citizens’ Oversight Committee meetings to verify compliance with Education 
Code sections 15278 through 15282.  
 
Results of Procedures Performed 
 
We have determined the San Dieguito Union High School District’s Proposition AA Building Fund (21-39) Citizens’ 
Oversight Committee and its involvement is in compliance with Education Code sections 15278 through 15282.  
 
Our audit of compliance made for the purposes set forth in the second and third paragraphs of this report above would 
not necessarily disclose all instances of noncompliance. 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
56 of 60



 

47 
 

Opinion on Performance  
 
In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements of Proposition 39 
outlined in Article XIIIA, Section 1(b)(3)(c) of the California Construction, and with Proposition AA approved by 
the voters in the San Dieguito Union High School District on November 9, 2013.  
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District’s Governing Board, the Proposition AA 
Citizens’ Oversight Committee, management, others within the entity, and the taxpayers of San Dieguito Union High 
School District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
El Cajon, California 
March 15, 2019

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
57 of 60



 

 
 

AUDITOR’S RESULTS, FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
58 of 60



 

48 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Schedule of Findings and Responses 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

 

There were no findings to report.  

  

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
59 of 60



 

49 
 

SAN DIEGUITO UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPOSITION AA BUILDING FUND (21-39) 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2018 
               

There were no audit findings noted for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.  

 

ITEM 5

ICOC Agenda Packet, 03/19/19 
60 of 60


	03-19-19 - ICOC Special Mtg. Agenda
	Item 5, 2018 Bond Audit Review
	2018 Bond Audit
	Introduction
	Independent Auditor's Report

	Financial Statements
	Balance Sheet

	Required Supplementary Information
	Supplementary Information
	General Obligation Bonds / Project List

	Other Independent Auditor's Reports
	Auditor's Results, Findings & Recommendations
	Schedule of Findings & Responses / pg. 48







